
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
COMMISSION AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING 

 April 24, 2025, at 2:00 P.M. 
Ontario International Airport Authority Administration Offices 

1923 East Avion Street, Room 100, Ontario, CA 91761 

Live YouTube Streaming for Listening Only: https://www.youtube.com/@flyont/streams 

ALAN D. WAPNER 
President 

CURT HAGMAN 
Vice President 

RONALD O. LOVERIDGE 
Treasurer 

JIM W. BOWMAN 
Secretary 

JULIA GOUW 
Commissioner 

ATIF ELKADI 
Chief Executive Officer 

LORI D. BALLANCE 
General Counsel 

ADRIANNE FERNANDEZ 
Deputy Commission Clerk 

• All documents for public review are on file at the Ontario International Airport Administration Offices located at
1923 E. Avion Street, Ontario, CA 91761.

• This meeting is streamed live from our YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@flyont/streams.
Streaming will be for listening only and not participation. Public Comments will be taken by email or in-person only.
This is a pilot stream, so errors and bugs may occur. If you have any issues, feel free to email clerk@flyontario.com
for resolution after the meeting.

• Anyone wishing to speak during public comment, or on an agenda item, will be required to fill out a Request to
Address Card (blue slip). Blue slips must be turned in prior to public comment beginning or before an agenda item
is taken up. The Deputy Commission Clerk will not accept blue slips after that time.

• You may submit public comments by e-mail to publiccomment@flyontario.com no later than 4:00 p.m. the day
before the meeting. Please identify the Agenda item you wish to address in your comments. All e-mail comments
will be included in the meeting record.

• Comments will be limited to 3 minutes. Speakers will be alerted when their time is up and no further comments
will be permitted. Speakers are then to return to their seats.

• In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects within the Authority’s
jurisdiction. Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those items.

• Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the Commission Meeting Room will not be permitted. All
those wishing to speak, including Commissioners and Staff, need to be recognized by the Authority President before
speaking.

• Sign language interpreters, communication access real-time transcription, assistive listening devices, or other
auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure availability, you are advised to make your
request at least 72 hours prior to the meeting you wish to attend. Due to difficulties in securing Sign Language
Interpreters, five or more business days’ notice is strongly recommended. Any members of the public who require
special assistance or a reasonable accommodation to participate may contact the Deputy Commission Clerk at (909)
544- 5307 or clerk@flyontario.com.

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 – www.flyontario.com 

WELCOME TO A MEETING OF 
THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/%40flyont/streams
https://www.youtube.com/%40flyont/streams
mailto:clerk@flyontario.com
mailto:publiccomment@flyontario.com
mailto:clerk@flyontario.com
http://www.flyontario.com/


Commission Meeting Agenda 
April 24, 2025 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 – www.flyontario.com Page 2 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Agenda item contractors, subcontractors and agents may require member abstentions due to conflict
of interests and financial interests. Commission Member abstentions shall be stated under this item
for recordation on the appropriate item.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 

CLOSED SESSION 

• GC § 54956.9: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (1 matter)

• GC § 54957, PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: Chief Executive Officer

• GC § 54957.6, CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Agency designated representative: General Counsel or Outside Counsel
Unrepresented employee: Chief Executive Officer

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

General Legal Counsel 

CALL TO ORDER (OPEN SESSION) 

The Chief Executive Officer will go over all updated materials and correspondence received after the 
agenda was distributed to ensure Commissioners have received them. 

AGENDA REVIEW 

The Public Comment portion of the Commission meeting is limited to a maximum of 3 minutes for each 
Public Comment. Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Commission is prohibited from taking action 
on oral requests. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

CLOSED SESSION 

Page 2

http://www.flyontario.com/


Commission Meeting Agenda 
April 24, 2025 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 – www.flyontario.com Page 3 

2. 5K AT THE RUNWAY CHECK PRESENTATION TO THE USO

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve minutes for the Special OIAA Commissioner Meeting on March 17, 2025.

4. CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT (BILLS/PAYROLL)

Receive and file the Cash Disbursement Report (Bills/Payroll) for the month ended March 31, 2025.

5. COMMISSIONER’S STIPENDS AS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITY BYLAWS

Approve additional stipends per Article IV, Section 6 of the Authority’s Bylaws for President Alan 

Wapner for the month of March, 2025.

6. PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE, CUSTOMER FACILITY CHARGE, ANNUAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT AND 
SINGLE AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Receive and file the Passenger Facility Charge, Customer Facility Charge, annual compliance audit 
and single audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

7. PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC FOR FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute an Agreement with PFM Financial Advisors 
LLC., for financial consulting services for three years, with two one-year extensions, in the amount 
not to exceed $1,250,000 over the next five years.

8. AGREEMENT WITH H2 CONSULTING PARTNERS LLC FOR THE ROUTES WORLD EXHIBIT
DESIGN AND BUILD SERVICES
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute an agreement with H2 Consulting Partners 
LLC for the Routes World Exhibit Design and Build services, for one year, with two possible one-
year contract extensions, not to exceed $174,500 annually, and authorize an increase in contract 
authority in the amount of up to $35,500 for unforeseen services as needed. The total contract 
authority, including optional extensions and the additional contingency, shall not exceed $559,000.

CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. 
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time Commission votes on them, unless 
a member of the Commission requests a specific item be removed from the Consent Calendar for a 
separate vote. Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on items listed on the 
Consent Calendar will be given a total of 3 minutes each to address the items collectively. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Page 3

http://www.flyontario.com/


Commission Meeting Agenda 
April 24, 2025 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 – www.flyontario.com Page 4 

9. AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING CONCESSIONS AGREEMENT WITH BREWERY X

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to negotiate and execute an Amendment to the existing
Concession Agreement with Brewery X for an additional restaurant location to be operated in
Terminal 4.

10. AGREEMENT WITH BREWERY X FOR CO-BRANDING AND REVENUE SHARING

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to negotiate and execute a Co-Branding and Revenue
Sharing Agreement with Brewery X.

11. AMENDMENT TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UPDATES 

PRESIDENT WAPNER 
VICE PRESIDENT HAGMAN 
TREASURER LOVERIDGE 
SECRETARY BOWMAN 
COMMISSIONER GOUW 

COMMISSION MATTERS 

ADJOURNMENT 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Adrianne Fernandez, Deputy Commission Clerk of the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA), do hereby declare under penalty 
of perjury that the foregoing agenda has been posted at the administrative office and on the OIAA website in compliance to the Brown Act. 

Date Posted: April 21, 2025 Posted Prior To: 2:00 P.M. 

Signature: 
Adrianne Fernandez, Deputy Commission Clerk 
Ontario International Airport Authority Commission Clerk 

CEO REPORT 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS/DISCUSSION/ACTION 

Page 4

http://www.flyontario.com/


OIAA Staff Report Item No. 01 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 

SUBJECT: RELATIVE POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: ☒ Invest in ONT ☒ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Declare Conflict of Interest pertaining to agenda items and contractors and/or 
subcontractors, which may require member abstentions due to possible conflicts of interest. 

FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: N/A 

BACKGROUND: In accordance with California Government Code 84308, members of the Ontario International 
Airport Authority Commission may not participate in any action concerning a contract where they have received 
a campaign contribution of more than $250 in the prior twelve (12) months in 2024, or $500 in 2025, and from 
an entity or individual if the member knows or has reason to know that the participant has a financial interest, 
except for the initial award of a competitively bid public works contract. This agenda contains recommendations 
for action relative to the following contractors: 

Item No Principals & Agents Subcontractors 

07 PFM Financial Advisors LLC. • None

 

08 H2 Consulting Partners, LLC • None

PROCUREMENT: N/A 

CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 

STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS):  N/A 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 

SCHEDULE: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

Page 5



   
 

 
OIAA Staff Report  Item No. 01 

STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Adrianne Fernandez, Deputy Commission Clerk 

Originating Dept.: Executive Division 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 
 

CFO Review: N/A 

CEO Approval: 
 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 6

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 03 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☒ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Approve minutes for the OIAA Commissioners meeting on March 17, 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: N/A 
 
BACKGROUND: The OIAA Commission held a public meeting, and minutes were recorded in text. In accordance 
with OIAA’s Records Retention Schedule, the OIAA must preserve these historical records in hard copy form for 
permanent retention. 
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS):  N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Minutes  
  

Page 7



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 03 

 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Adrianne Fernandez, Deputy Commission Clerk 

Originating Dept.: Executive Division 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 

 

CFO Review: N/A 

CEO Approval: 
 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 8

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OIAA COMMISSION 
 

 
OIAA: Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 17, 2025, Meeting Page 1 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING 

MINUTES 
MARCH 17, 2025 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice President Hagman called the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission meeting to order at 2:00 
p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 
PRESENT:  

Alan D. Wapner, President        Curt Hagman, Vice President 
 Ronald D. Loveridge, Treasurer Jim W. Bowman, Secretary 

 Julia Gouw, Commissioner 
 

Curt Hagman, Vice President entered the meeting at 2:04 p.m. 
 
A quorum of the OIAA Commissioners was present. 
 
STAFF: 
 Chief Executive Officer Atif Elkadi General Counsel Kevin P. Sullivan 
 Deputy Commission Clerk Adrianne Fernandez 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
No conflicts of interests were declared. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
President Wapner called for public comment.  
 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Wapner closed public comment. 
 

 

Page 9



DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OIAA COMMISSION 
 

 
OIAA: Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 17, 2025, Meeting Page 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
President Wapner called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

• GC § 54957, PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

• GC § 54957.6, CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Agency designated representative:  General Counsel or Outside Counsel 

Unrepresented employee:  Chief Executive Officer 

President Wapner recessed the Open Session and called the Closed Session to order at 2:07 p.m. The Open 
Session reconvened at 3:10 p.m. 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
General Counsel Kevin P. Sullivan announced an amendment to the Chief Executive Officer’s employee 
agreement will be presented to the OIAA Commission in April 2025. The current employee agreement will 
remain in effect until the amendment is considered at the April 2025, OIAA Commission Meeting.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Approved minutes for the OIAA Commissioner Meeting on February 27, 2025. 
 

3. CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT (BILLS/PAYROLL) 
 
Received and filed the Cash Disbursement Report (Bills/Payroll) for the month ended February 28, 2025. 
 

4. COMMISSIONER’S STIPENDS AS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITY BYLAWS 
 
Approved additional stipends per Article IV, Section 6 of the Authority’s Bylaws for President Alan Wapner for 
the month of February, 2025. 

5. CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH THE GORDIAN GROUP INC., FOR A COMPREHENSIVE FACILITIES 
CONDITION ASSESMENT AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

 
Authorized the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to amend contract SCONT-000783, with The Gordian Group Inc., 
to add service scope for a campus-wide facilities condition assessment, over a three year term, initial year one 
of $464,269, second year of $45,543, and third year of $46,993, for a not to exceed, total amount for all services 
of $556,805. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Page 10



DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OIAA COMMISSION 
 

 
OIAA: Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 17, 2025, Meeting Page 3 

6. AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH HILTACHK MARKETING GROUP, LLC 
 

Authorized the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute an amendment with Hiltachk Marketing Group, LLC for 
marketing and creative advertising services; authorized an additional six-month extension to the end of the 
contract, and a spend increase of $8,700,000 over the remaining extended term of the agreement. 

 
7. AGREEMENT WITH BARICH INC., FOR ON-CALL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

CONSULTING SERVICES 
 

Authorized the Chief Executive Officer to execute an agreement with Barich, Inc. for on-call IT Management 
Consulting Services, with a total contract value not to exceed $400,000. The contract includes an initial one-year 
term and three (3) one-year renewal options, exercisable solely at OIAA’s discretion and in writing. 

 
8. CONTRACT WITH MEAD & HUNT, INC., FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOFY MANAGEMENT 

CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
Authorized the Chief Executive Officer to execute an agreement with Mead and Hunt, Inc. for on-call information 
technology management consulting services, with a total contract value not to exceed $300,000. The contract 
includes an initial one-year term and three (3) one-year renewal options, exercisable solely at OIAA’s discretion 
and in writing. 

MOTION: Moved by Secretary Bowman, seconded by Treasurer Loveridge, to approve the Consent Calendar. 
Motion carried by a 5 Yes/0 No vote. 
 

CEO REPORT 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UPDATES 
 
Chief Executive Officer Elkadi provided updates on passenger traffic numbers, changes to flights, and general 
airport matters. 
 

COMMISSIONER MATTERS 
 
There were no Commission matters to report. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
President Wapner adjourned the Ontario International Airport Authority Commissioners Meeting at 3:11 p.m. 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________________ 
ADRIANNE FERNANDEZ, ALAN D. WAPNER, PRESIDENT 
DEPUTY COMMISSION CLERK 

Page 11



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 12



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 04 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025  
 
SUBJECT: CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT (BILLS/PAYROLL)  
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☒ Master the Basics ☐ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Receive and file the Cash Disbursement Report (Bills/Payroll) for the month ended 
March 31, 2025.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: The funding is approved in the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: In June 2024, the OIAA Board of Commissioners adopted an operating budget that is driven by 
strong aviation activity and financial performance realized by OIAA in FY2024. The operating budget was 
developed from OIAA goals and objectives and includes significant increases in resources to meet current and 
expected near-term growth. 
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Cash Disbursement Report (Bills/Payroll) for the month ended March 31, 2025.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 13



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 04 

STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Celeste Heinonen, Senior Vice President, CFO 

Originating Dept.: Financial Accounting and Reporting 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 

  

CFO Review: 

 

CEO Approval: 

 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 14

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 05 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 
 
AGENDA SECTION:  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
SUBJECT: COMMISSIONER’S STIPENDS AS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITY BYLAWS 
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☒ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):  Approve additional stipends per Article IV, Section 6 of the Authority’s Bylaws for 
President Wapner for the month of March, 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: OIAA operating revenue. 
 
BACKGROUND: Article IV, Section 6 of the Authority’s Bylaws states as follows:  
 
“No Salary; Reimbursement for Expenses; Stipends. The members of the Commission shall receive no salary but 
shall be reimbursed for necessary expenses (including mileage in accordance with standard IRS mileage 
reimbursement rates) incurred in the performance of their duties. Additionally, Commissioners will receive a 
monthly stipend for each month of a calendar year in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), which 
amount will be deemed to address Commissioner participation for six (6) Authority-related business functions 
or events, such as attendance at each monthly Commission meeting, any standing committee meeting, any ad 
hoc committee meeting, briefings, and any other Authority-related business function or event. If a 
Commissioner participates in or attends a collective total of more than six (6) Commission meetings, any 
standing committee meetings, any ad hoc committee meeting, briefings, or any other Authority-related business 
function or event in a calendar month, then the Commissioner shall receive an additional stipend of one hundred 
fifty dollars ($150.00) for each such additional matter, with the majority approval by the Commission.” 

During the month of March 2025, President Wapner attended fourteen (8) additional Authority-related business 
functions.  Majority Commission approval is needed to approve payment of these additional stipends. 
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 

Page 15



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 05 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Adrianne Fernandez, Deputy Commission Clerk 

Originating Dept.: Executive Division 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 

 

CFO Review: 

 

CEO Approval: 
 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   
 

Page 16

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 06 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE:  APRIL 24, 2025  
 
SUBJECT:  PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE, CUSTOMER FACILTY CHARGE, ANNUAL COMPLIANCE 

AUDIT AND SINGLE AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☒ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Receive and file the Passenger Facility Charge, Customer Facility Charge, annual 
compliance audit and single audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: N/A 
 
BACKGROUND: The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) is obligated by the Federal Office of the 
Inspector General and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to provide annual compliance audits on the 
Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) and Customer Facility Charge (CFC) Programs, and well as a single audit regarding 
use of federal grant funding.  The Audits are to be conducted by an independent third party.  OIAA’s external 
auditors, Plante Moran, LLC, have audited and provided PFC, CFC and Single Audits for the year ending June 30th, 
2024.  Annual reports containing the audited financial statements or elements thereof are filed with the Office 
of the Inspector General, FAA, Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB), and other interested parties. 
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. OIAA Federal Awards PFC Program Supplemental Information 
2. OIAA Customer Facility Charge Program Compliance Report 

 
 
  

Page 17



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 06 

 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Celeste Heinonen 

Originating Dept.: Financial Accounting and Reporting 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 

 

CFO Review: 

 

CEO Approval: 
 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 18

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 42



OIAA Staff Report Item No. 07 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 

SUBJECT:  PFM FINACIAL ADVISORS LLC FOR FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: ☒ Invest in ONT ☐ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute an Agreement with PFM 
Financial Advisors LLC for financial consulting services for three years, with two one-year discretionary 
extensions, in the total amount not to exceed $1,250,000.00 over the next five years. 

FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: Funding for this contract is approved under the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget. 
Funding for subsequent years will be requested through the annual budget process. 

BACKGROUND: The financial services contract provides the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) with 
internal financial consulting support focused on long-term financial planning and strategic funding. The 
contracted firm assists with financial modeling, budgeting, and forecasting to guide major decisions and ensure 
fiscal sustainability. Additionally, they support the OIAA in preparing for and securing funding for capital 
improvement projects, including potential bond issuances, grant applications, or other financing mechanisms. 

PROCUREMENT: On December 9, 2024, the OIAA issued a Request for Proposal (2024-RFP-52) seeking Financial 
Services for the Ontario International Airport. The deadline for proposal submissions was January 16, 2025, by 
which time three (3) responsive proposals were received. The RFP Evaluation Panel thoroughly reviewed and 
scored all responsive proposals and recommended that two (2) firms advance to the interview stage. Following 
the interviews, the panel finalized their evaluations and recommends awarding the contract to PFM Financial 
Advisors LLC. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 

STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 

SCHEDULE: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Page 43



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 07 

 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Celeste Heinonen 

Originating Dept.: Financial Accounting and Reporting 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 

 

CFO Review: 

 

CEO Approval: 
 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 44

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


   
 

 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 08 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT WITH H2 CONSULTING PARTNERS LLC FOR THE ROUTES WORLD EXHIBIT 

DESIGN AND BUILD 
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☐ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute an agreement with H2 
Consulting Partners LLC for the Routes World Exhibit Design and Build services, for one year, with two possible 
one-year contract extensions, not to exceed $174,500 annually, and authorize an increase in contract authority 
in the amount of up to $35,500 for unforeseen services as needed. The total contract authority, including 
optional extensions and the additional contingency, shall not exceed $559,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: Partial funds for this contract are available in the FY 2025 Budget. Funding for the 
remainder years will be requested through the annual budget process for the 25-26FY.  
 
BACKGROUND: Ontario International Airport (ONT) operates in a highly competitive environment, serving as a 
key gateway for travelers in Southern California and beyond. Routes World 2025 will bring together decision-
makers from airlines, airports, and destinations, offering a platform for networking and planning potential air 
service routes. This is particularly significant for ONT, as expanding air service options remains a top priority. 
The exhibit space offers a venue for ONT to strengthen existing relationships with airlines and cultivate new 
partnerships with potential carriers for future service. This event distinguishes ONT from its competitors, 
reinforces its global connectivity, and underscores its commitment to linking the Inland Empire to the world. 
 
PROCUREMENT: On January 24,2025, The OIAA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) seeking a firm to provide 
Routes World Exhibit Design/Build services for the Marketing Department. The proposal submissions deadline 
was February 21,2025, by which time two (2) proposals were received. The RFP evaluation panel thoroughly 
reviewed and scored all submitted proposals, subsequently recommending two (2) firms proceed to the 
interview stage. Following the interviews, the panel finalized their evaluations and unanimously recommended 
awarding the contract to H2 Consulting Partners LLC. 
 
The recommended contract is for a one-year term, with two optional one-year extensions, not to exceed 
$174,500 annually. To allow flexibility for unforeseen services that may be required in support of Routes World 
event deadlines, staff is also requesting an increase to the contract authority in the amount of up to $35,500. 
This additional amount is intended to cover any unforeseen, time-sensitive services not included in the original 
contract scope. If approved, the total not-to-exceed contract authority, including all optional extensions and the 
requested contingency, would be $559,000. 
 

Page 45



   
 

 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 08 

 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: The proposed professional services agreement with the 
Consultant is not a “project” within the meaning of Section 15378 of the CEQA guidelines because there is no 
potential for the Consultant’s consulting work to result in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 
As a result, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): The proposed action will not create any permanent positions in the OIAA. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Eren Cello, Senior Vice President, Communications and Marketing 

Originating Dept.: Communications and Marketing 

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review: 
 

CFO Review: 
 

CEO Approval:  

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 46

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 09 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:  AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING CONCESSIONS AGREEMENT WITH BREWERY X   
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☐ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to negotiate and execute an 
Amendment to the existing Concession Agreement with Brewery X for an additional restaurant location to be 
operated in Terminal 4. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: The anticipated revenue generated from the additional Terminal 4 location will be 
consistent with the current revenue-sharing terms of Agreement ONT-20-10035 for the Brewery X Terminal 2 
location that was authorized by the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission on November 
14, 2023, for a ten-year term agreement, set to expire November 13, 2033, with the option of two (2) five-year 
options to extend. The addition of a Brewery X restaurant location in Terminal 4 is expected to contribute 
positively to the OIAA’s overall non-aeronautical revenue growth.  
 
BACKGROUND: Brewery X currently operates a successful location in Terminal 2 and has significantly enhanced 
the passenger experience through their locally inspired food & beverage offerings. The Brewery X brand has 
become a flagship tenant reflecting the spirit of Southern California. To build on this success, and to meet 
increasing passenger demand, OIAA seeks to add a second Brewery X-operated concessions space in Terminal 
4 consistent with the current revenue-sharing terms of Agreement ONT-20-10035.   
 
The proposed Brewery X restaurant expansion in Terminal 4 will mirror the current model in Terminal 2 and 
allow for increased visibility and access to passengers traveling through both Terminals. This Amendment would 
authorize Brewery X to operate in Terminal 4 under consistent concession and operational terms as outlined in 
the existing Agreement ONT-20-10035.  
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
 

Page 47



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 09 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Elisa J Grey 

Originating Dept.: Revenue Management  

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review:  

CFO Review:  

CEO Approval: 

 

 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 48

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 10 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:  CO-BRANDING AND REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT WITH BREWERY X   
 
RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  ☒ Invest in ONT ☐ Master the Basics ☒ Plan for the Future 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to negotiate and execute a Co-
Branding and Revenue Sharing Agreement with Brewery X. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT SUMMARY: The co-branding relationship between the Ontario International Airport Authority 
(OIAA) and Brewery X is expected to generate new incremental revenue for the OIAA, promote Ontario 
International Airport’s (ONT’s) brand throughout Southern California, and leverage existing advertising and 
partnership strategies. Staff estimates that within the first full year of the proposed agreement, 24,000 co-
branded beverage units will be sold with revenue to the OIAA projected at approximately $300,000.  
 
BACKGROUND: Since opening its location in Terminal 2, Brewery X has served as a key partner in enhancing 
ONT’s food & beverage offerings. Building on the strong alignment between ONT and Brewery X, the two parties 
have developed a co-branded beer called “Come Fly With Me”. The product is intended to represent the spirit 
of travel and the local flavor of Southern California, while creating a unique avenue for non-aeronautical revenue 
growth. The beer will be sold at ONT and through a variety of regional retail and entertainment venue locations 
to generate incremental OIAA revenue and expand ONT’s brand presence across the region. 
 
Under the terms of the proposed deal, Brewery X will produce the beer while the OIAA will lead logistics, 
marketing, and distribution efforts within the ONT primary catchment area. Revenue sharing to the OIAA will 
occur on a per-unit basis as follows: $6/case, $10/keg and $1.50/six-pack.  
 
PROCUREMENT: N/A 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 
 
SCHEDULE: N/A 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
OIAA Staff Report Item No. 10 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

Originator: Elisa J Grey 

Originating Dept.: Revenue Management  

Director Review: N/A 

Chief Review:  

CFO Review: 

 

CEO Approval:  
 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for approval.  
Any document(s) referred to herein, which are not attached or posted online, may be reviewed prior to or 
following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the Commission. Hours to review are 
between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and review procedures may be 
modified. In that case, the documents may be requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   

Page 50

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com

	00 2025-0424- Final Agenda
	01 Staff Report - Conflict of Interest  2025-0424
	03 Staff Report - Minutes
	04 Staff Report - Cash Disbursement
	05 Staff Report - Stipend Report
	06 Staff Report - PFC, CFC and Single Audit
	07 Staff Report - PFM Contract
	08 Staff Report - H2 Consulting Partner
	09 Staff Report - Brewery X Amendment 2025
	10 Staff Report - Co- Branding and Revenue Sharing with Brewery X



